hﬁa Center for
Graawer Hartlord Legal Aid C h ] l d rens
Advocacy

Complait Against Conneeticut Technical High School Systen (CTHSS)

Greater Hartford Legal Aid (“GHLA) and the Center for Children’s Advocacy (“CCA*) jOIllﬂY
file this wmplamt against the Connectlcut Technical High School System (“CTHSS"), GHLA
and CCA? will be collectively referred fo herelnafter as “Complainants,”

GHLA and CCA allege that CTHSS applies its admissions policies in ways that discriminate
against students with disabilities in violation of the Americans with Disabilities Act (‘“ADA™)
and Section 504 of the federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and the implementing regulations,
GHLA and CCA jointly file this complaint as organizational complainants on behalf of all
students with disabilities who have applied for, and been denied admission to, the incoming ninth
grade class for 2016-2017 at the CTHSS as a result of the CTHSS discriminatory admissions
policies and processes, in viokation of Title 1 of the ADA of 1990, 42 U.S.C. §12131 e/, seq. and
its implementing regulations, 28 C.E.R. part 35,% and Section 504 of the Rchabﬂ:tahon Act of
1973, 29 U.8.C. § 794 and lis implementing tegulatlons, 34 C\R.R, part 104° and Appendix B
“Guidelines for Eliminating Discrimination and Denial of Services on the Basis of Race, Color,
National Origin, Sex and Handicap in Vocational Education Programs” (erefnafler

V GHLA Is 8 non-profit law firm whwose attormeys advoeate for equal justics for poor people, work with otients to
promote sooial justice, and use the taw to address (he effects and root canses of poverty, GHLA represents students
will disabilitlos to enforce thele vight to a fres and appropriate education, special education services, due process in
sohool disoipline, and quality compensatory eduoational services if required to remedinte failures of the school
system.

The Center for Children’s Advocacy (“CCA®) is a non-proflt legal advocaoy organization in Connecliond whose
inlgsion Is to promote and protest the legal righis and interesis of poor childven who aro dependent upen the fudicinl,
cl\ild welfare, health and meontal health, education, and Juvenfe justice systers for their care.

* “No qualified individunl with a disability shall, on the basls of disability, be exeluded from participation i or be
denied the benefits of lho services, programs, or activilles of a public entlty, or be subjected to diserindnation by any
publio entity,” 28 C.F.R. § 35.130(s). "A public enlily shall nof impose or apply eligibility erlierfa that soreen out or
{end to sereen out an lndividual with a disabillty or auy class of individuals from fally and equally enjoying any
service, progranss, or aclivity, unless such erlterin can be shown to bo necessary for tho provision of the servics,
frogram, or aglivity bogln offered,” 28 CER. § 35,130(b)(3).

‘"No qualified handicapped person shatl, on ihie basis of inudicap, be excluded from participntion in, be denied the
bonefits of, or otherwise be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity which receives Federal
fnancial asslstance, (b) Discriminatory actions prohibited, (1) A reciplent, in providing any ald, benefil, or service,
may itot, direcily or through contracival, lieensiug, or other arcangements, on (ke bnsis of haudlcap: (1) Dony a
qualified handicapped person the opportundty to participate in or benefit from the aid, benefit, or service...” 34

C.FR. § 1044,




“Guidelines”),’ and Conn, Gon Stat. § 46a-75.° Due to this disorimination, students with
disabilities are undet-represented in the state’s technical high school system, a system that should

* Rolevant portions of the Guidelines provide as follows: “Criteria controtling student sligibility for admission to
vogational education schools, facilities and progeams may not undawlully discreiminate on the basis of race, cofor,
sntfonal origln, sex, or handicap. A reolpient may not dovelop, impose, malutain, approve, or implement such
diseriminatory admissions criteria,” Guidetines, § IV.A,

“Reolpients may not judge candidates for admission to vocational educalion programs on the basis of criteria that
have the effect of disproporiionately excludiug persons of a particular ,,., handicap, Howsver, if a recipient can
doonstrate Ihat such oriterla have been validated as essentinl to partioipation in a given program and $hat
alternative equally valid crlieria (hat do not bave suoll a disproportionate adverse effesl are unavailable, fhe criteria
will be judged siondiseriminatory. Examples of ndmissions eriteris that mwst imeet this test ave past academic
performance, record of disoiplinary infractions, counselors' approval, teachers' recommendations, Interest
inventories, high scheol diplomas and standardized tests, such as the Test of Adutt Basic Bducation (TABE).”

Guldelines, § IV.K, '

“Reolpients may ot deny handloapped students aceess to vacational education programs or courses because of
««the need for rolated aids and services or auxiliary alds. If necessary, reoipients mwst: (1) Modify nstructional
equipwent; (2) modify or adapt the mauner in whioh the courses ave offered; ...and (4) provide auxiliary aids that
effeclively make leolures and necessary mnterials available (o postsecondary handicapped students; (5) provide
rolnted alds or services that assure sceondary students an appropriate eduention.

Academic requirements that the resipient can demonsitate are essentlal to a program of instrestion or to any directly
rolated licensing requiroment will sot be regarded as discriminatory. Howevet, where possiblo, a reoipiont must
adjust thoss requirements to the needs of indvidaal handisapped students.

Access to vocatlonal programs or vourses may not be denied handicapped students on the ground that employnient
opportunitics in any oscupation or profosslon may be more Limited for handicapped persons than for non-

handicapped porsons.” Guidelines, § IV.N,

“Recipionts must insure that thelr counsollng materials and activitios (lucluding student program selection and
careerfemployment seleotlon), promolional, and reciuitment efforts do ot diseriminate on the basls of... haudicap.”

Guidolines, §V.A, '

“Recipients must conduet their student recruittiont aolivitics so us not to excludo or limit opporiunitics on the basis
of ... handloap, Where reerultment activitles involve the presentation or portrayal of vocational and ¢areer
opportunilies, the currleula and programs deseribed shoald cover a broad range of ocoupaional opportunities and
not be limited on the ... handicap of the students or potential students to whom the presentatios fs made.”

Guidslines, § V.C.

6 “/(a} All educational, counseling, and vocational guidance programs and all apprenticeship and on-the-job
training programs of state agencles, or in which state agencles participate, shall bs open to all qgualified
persons, without regavi to race, coloy, veliglous creed, sex, gendeor identity or expression, nriital status, age,
natlonal origln, ancestry, Intellectual disabllity, montal disability, loarning disability or physical disabllity,
including, but not imited to, blindness,

{b) Such programs shall be conducted to encourage the fullest development of the intevests, aplitudes, skills,
and capacitios of all students and trainees, with speclal attention to the problems of culturally deprlved,
educationally handicapped, learning disabled, economically disadvantaged, or physically disabled, including,
but not Hmfted to, blind persons,

(¢) Expansion of training opportunities under these programs shall be encouragad so as to involve Jarger
numbers of partlclpants from those segiments of the labor force where the need for upgrading levels of skill is

groatest,” Conn, Gen. Stat. § 46a-75,




provide all students with valuable career alternatives. According to the State of Connecticut
Department of Education (“SDE”) statistios, in 2013-14, only 8.2% of students in the CTHSS
were students with disabilities, compared with 12.4% statewide. The CTHSS has continued to
exclude students with disabilities in violation of tho law despite the fact that the CTHSS entered
into a Voluntary Resolution Agreement (“VRA”) with OCR just over one year ago to resolve
sitmilar complaints of discrimination, See affached VRA, 115 LRP 50585, Complaint # 01-13-
1169, 01-13-1232, dated May 27, 2015,

The Complainants contend that the CTHSS® admissions policy impropetly excludes and has a
discriminatory impact on students with disabilitics in that it:

1. Imposes additional admissions criteria for students with disabilities,

2- Predetermines admission based solely on scores on norm-referenced tests’ for
students with disabilities only, and in advance of any IEP team meeting (classified
as a Planning and Placement Temn Meoting in Connecticut, hercinafier a “PPT™),
making the PPT process both futile and misleading,

3- Utilizes cyiteria that has not been demoustrated to be essential to participation in
CTHSS, and

4- Bases decisions on the ability of a student with disabilities to access the general
education curticulum without reasonable modifiontions and accommodations
when failing to make rensonable modifications and accommodations is in itself
discriminatory,

The Complainants offer the following background on the CTHSS admissions and academic
progiam, as well as ten cage studies to fllustrate CTHSS? implementation of lis admissions policy
and its diseriminatory policies and practices, All acts or omissions that resulted in violations of
federal law occurred during the perlod of January 1, 2016 to the present,

Lhe CTHSS Admissions Process and Program

All sindents:

The CTHSS is established by the Connecticut State Board of Education pursuant to Conn, Gen,
Stat, § 10-95 ond operates as a state agency. The CTHSS is a reoipient of fedexal financial
assistanice. The CTHSS is comprised of twenty individual schools. See

The CTHSS uses otie uniform application across all of its high schools, Students tay apply to a
maximum of four technical schools on a single application, ranked by the student in order of
preference, The application is then submitted to the student’s first choice school, See aitached

Application.®

7 An example of a novm ~refevenced test is the Measure of Acadentic Progress (MAP) by the Northwest

Bvaluation Assoclation (NWHA).
8 The application form had been avatlable on-line at www.citech.ovg. 'Fhe website s belng revised and the
Application sections are stll under construction.




Pursuant to the “CTHSS Application Process,” the admissions criteria is based on the following
formula which is applied to the incoming ninth grade class 0f 2016-2017:

Students are assigned points based on the information submitied in their
application,...points are awarded based on English and Math grades., Other application
information is gathered for study purposes only. This can vary from year to year. The
applicants’ total score determines their placement on a ranked list.., highest total score to
the lowest fotal score, ... All CTHSS schools tank students in the same manner. . Student
applicants who do not meet the initial adiissions critetia are placed on a wait list, If
your child meets the first step of the application process and the Parental Return
Statement form is received indicating infent to attend, we witl notify your school of
required additional information as identified in the student application.

See attached CTHSS Application Process.

The application directs sending schools to forward the seventh grade final roport card, eighth
grade completed marking petiod information (franscript), attendance, discipline record, and most
recent norm-referenced screening data for numeracy and literacy including scaled scores as
available, and Language Assessment Scale (LAS LINKS) for those students who are English
Language learners.

Pursuant to the Application Process, the following criterla apply to students applying as ninth
grade students for the 2016-2017 acadetnic year:

- “Bnglish and math grades” refers to grades achieved in the applicant’s English and math
classes for seventh and eighth grade and are the only criteria awarded points on the scoring
rubric to develop the ranked fist,?

-CTHSS does not assess the math curricola of individual districts to determine if the
eighth grade math cusriculum adequately teaches pre-Algebra skills,

-CI'HSS does not ask teachers/schools to attest that the applicant is ready to take Algebra
in ninth grade,

- Scores for norm-referenced test scores are not awarded points for purposes of the
ranked list,

“There is NOQ admission dependent, qualifying placement test,

-There are NO established, cut-off, norm-referenced English or math scores for
achnission,

-Norm-referenced test scores are collected for “study purposes only,” and

-Points ate not awarded for Interest, attendance, or discipline records.

9 See attached CTHSS Application Process (“For the freshman class of 2016-2017 points ave awarded based on
English and Math grades, Other application Information s gathered for study purposes only”) and Sample
Refection Letter ("Your child’s final vank scove, earned through points based on English and Math grades has
placed him/her below the applicants cuvrently selected to move forward.”),

1050 aitached CTHSS Application Process and Sample Rejection Lettey.




All students, including those with disabilities, with top scores on the ranked list for each
individual CTHSS, based on the points awarded for math and English grades, receive a leiter of
Initial Acceptance, See attached Letter of Initial Acceptance.

For all students, the application process is not complete until, and final acceptance is predicated
upon, the CTHSS' receipt of the following documents no later than July 8, 2016:

-Parental Return Statement (intent to attend), and
-Complete school records that indicate;
-No serious disciplinayy infractions (further defined on the application as
“dangerous criminal offense”),
-Suceessful completion of 8™ grade, and
-Record of immunizations as required by state law

See attached Application,

Strdesnis with Disabilities:

Starting with applicants for academic year 2015-2016, additional steps in the application process
were required for students with disabililies receiving special education or with a 504 Plan, See
attached Memorandum from Isabelina Rodriguez, Ed,D,, Chief, Bureau of Special education,
and Nivea Torres, Ph.D., Superintendent, CTHSS, to Divectors of Special Bducation Pupil
Personnel Services, dated April 14, 2015 (herelnafter “Revised Admissions Process™),

Pursnant to the Revised Admissions Process, if a student is a “top scoring student” based on the
scoring/ranking rubric for all students, the student will receive a Letter of Initial Acceptance, and
the parent must then complete and refura the “Parental Refurn Statement” declaring intent to
attend the CTHSS, The parents (and/or sending school) must send the student’s “entive 504 and
special education records within 10 school da{/s after the student has accepted histher seat,” See

attached Revised Admissions Process, § 2.d."

Students are notified in the Letter of Initial Acceptance that; “A 504 or planning and placement
tenm (PPT) will be convened for a student with speclal needs to deterinine what services ate
appropriate for the student in the CTHSS environment, In some Instances, a team may
determine ¢that the CTHSS is not an appropriate placement for a student,” See aftached
Revised Admisslons Process, § 3 (emphasis in original},

The CTHSS invites sending district personnel to the PPT (heretnafier “Admissions PPT*) and
“strongly encourage[s] [them] to participate in these meeting in order to determine approptiate
educational programming,” See aifached Revised Admissions Process, 4 5.

' Tho policy later states that only three years of speclal education records, ncluding the most vecent triennial
evalnatlon or previous three year of 504 records” ave vequired, See actached Revised Admissions Process,

4,




The Revised Admissions Process asks that Dircctors of Special Bducation consider a chart
compating a teaditional high school to the CTHSS in the arcas of curriculum, intensity, class
standards, scheduling flexibility and adjustments, transition miong classes, and safety “to assist
student, famities, and district pexsonnel when exploring whether or not the CTHSS isan
appropriate setting in which a student can putsug is/her bigh schoal education,” (hereingfier
“Programming Considerations Chatt”). See attached Revised Admissions Process and
Programming Considerations Chart,

The CTHSS developed the Revised Admissions Process, dated April 14, 2015, subsequent to the
filing of OCR complaints ## 01-13-1169 and 01-13-1232 and prior to the execution of the VRA
on May 27, 2015, The VRA permits continued use of the Revised Admissions Process and
contains CTHSS attestations to comply with federal law, including the Guidelines. See atfached
VRA.

The VRA sets forth numerous reporting obligations of CTHSS on its evaluation of its adinissions
criterin, including a review of accepted/iejected students with disabilities. VRA §§ A.2, B.S,
C.7-9, It is Complainants’ understanding that OCR i still monitoring CTHSS pursuant to the
VRA. See attached Email from Patricia Cox, Civil Rights Investigator, U.S, Depattment of
Rducation, Office of Civil Rights to Marisa Mascolo Halm, Esq., Conter for Children's
Advocacy, May 10, 2016.

Case Ixamples:

In each of the cases recounted below, the studeni and parent were nol represented by legal
counsel until noted, Each student was in the eighth grade for acadenic year 2015-2016 and
applied to the CTHSS as an incoming ninth grader for acadentic year 2016-2017.

8§ s » fificen-year-old Bridgepott Public Schools (“BPS”) student who recently finished
elghth grade at Waltersville School. SR, 1cceives special education services, due to a “Speoific
Learning Disability.” A Februaty 24, 2016 IBP details the amount of special education services
recommended for S5 one perfod/day of speoialized instruction for languago arts (in & separate
setting) and one perlod/day of specialized instruction for math (in the form of a “push-in” by the
speotal educalion teacher into her regular education olass). See attached February 24, 2016 1EP.
Notes in the [EP mention she is “pleasant o teach,” Progress monitoring from the 2015-2016
school year contains almost all “S’s” to denote “Satisfactory Progress.” MK has no disoiplinary
history, including zexo “write-ups” in PowesSchool (BPS’ online database) and zero school
exclusions, By the third quarter of the 2015-2016 school year (the report card provided to the
CTHSS), {8 had received all A’s and one B on her report cards,




€. and her mother attended an Admissions PPT at Platt Technical School on March 30, 2016.
Accompanying them was {8#’s guidance counselor from Waltersville School, Sherene
Kennedy, and her special education teacher, Samantha Etlingheuser. Upon entering the room,
the CTHSS immediately began to question GBE about why she wanted to go to Platt "Tech, which
madeSEl feol uncomfortable. Trom the start of the meeting, S, hor mother, and the
Waltersville staff members folt as if the outcome of the meeting was predetermined by the
technical school team, in that they were going to reject her placoment, For example, Ms.
Kennedy pointed to S’s grades as evidence of her solid academic abilitics, and an individual
from the technical school team responded, “They only gave her those grades because she’s in a
resource room.” SR her mother, Ms. Kennedy, and Ms. Bitingheuser felt the CTHSS was
demeaning and dismissive of §588 both in tone and content.

Afler making their decision known, the CTHSS personnel asked s mom repeatedly if she
had any more questlons, She answered, “You have alteady made up your mind, so nothing 1 say
will make a diffevence,” In addition, after witnessing §EPand her mother’s reaction to the
meeting’s tone, the CTHSS staff members asked 5, s mother why they “put all of their eggs in
one basket.” Ms. Kennedy,§llfl;s guidance counselor, responded that a student is required to
reject other schools after being accepted to one. §EEPand hor mother left, and (B began
sobbing alinost immediately as they entered the hallway.

The resulting recommendation states: “Student’s present educational need for 182 days of
instruction in math and reading and modified grades based on TBP cannot be implemented
without a fundemental alteration of our program, It was the detetmination of the team that
CTHSS is not an appropriate sctting for [EE at this time.” See attached March 30, 2016 1EP.

£EEB s tenchers wrote recommendations to support her aceeptance into Platt Tech, Math teacher
Dennis Boskelto wrote, T can attest that she requires no accommmodations or modifications in
work load or content, She is on grade level....” SEE's English/Language Axls teacher, Ms,
Ramanauskas, attested, “She is a hardworking, dedicated student. ...[she] reads on-level eighth
grade fiction and nonfiction fext and successfully responds to short answot and extended
response questions,” Ms, Rumanauskas added that §E has recoived “district-wide recognition
for her beautiful poetry” and that the supports she provides to $8 avc “generic” and “are
available to every student [she] instruct{s].” She countesed the nssertion by CTHSS that S0’
grades had been modified: “The ELA giades that [$BEP carned have not been modified ox altered
in any way.” {EE’s solence, soclat studies, and special education teachers all wrote
recommendations as well, including such descriptions of S5 as “a good student who is always
oager to lean,” “a pleasure to have in class.. [and] always focused, determined, and prepared
every day,” “an asset to our school...[and a] dedicated student,” and “a leader, ..[who) enjoys the
learning process and wants to continue to build her knowledge...{and who] will be an excellent
addition to the high school program....” See attached Teacher Recommendations, Waltersville

School staff, April 2016.
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BB « Hartford Public Schools (“HPS”) student who altended the Butns School. fH was
identified as eligible for special education supports and services in first grade with a language-
based learning disability. Her non-verbal IQ is in the average range. During 2015-2016,¢888
was able fo complete close to grade level work in mainstream classes, though her norm-
referenced test scores are lower. Specifically, her Fall 2015 MAP for reading was 189, up to 194
in Spring 2016 (beginning third-grade level) and her Fall 2015 MAP for math was 200, up to 202
by Spring 2016 (beginning fourth-grade level).

For the upcoming ninth grade year, the May 4, 2016 HPS PPT recommended: “school social
work services for 30 minutes/week, push-in math support 2 hoursfweek and push-in language
arls support 2 hours/week,” See attached May 4, 2016 1EP,

888 ’s Admissions PPT with {he CTHSS at E.C, Goodwin Technical High School {ook place on
May 31, 2016, The PPT was attended by the special education teacher, guidance counselor, and
behavior specialist of the sending school, her counsel, and a representative of her Intensivo In-
hotme Child and Adolescent Psychological Services (“TICAPS) team,'? In reviewing $888s IEP,
the CTHSS staff focused on B’ s math performance and concluded that her fourth-grade math
level was not a pre-Algebra level. She was, therefore, not “Algebra-ready” for ninth grade, The
CTHSS persontiel further noted that §l’s low reading Ievel would make her unable to access
the tenth-grade Reading level of the trade books used in the cutriculum, Referencing S’s May
4, 2016 IEP, the CTHSS staff noted that “cusricular malerlals are modified to provide access fo
the content in math and reading the general education classes, and those modifications will be
conlinued in 9" grade” The CTHSS team concluded that “the student’s speoial education
instructional needs preclude her patticipation in the CTHSS currfeulum.” See attached May 31,

. 2016 TBP.

The CTHSS team strossed the May 4, 2016 IEP’s description of the “lmpact of student’s
disability on involvement and progress in the general education curiculun® which stated as
follows: “Due to {#88#’s assessed deflcils in reading [and algebraic thinking], she is unable to
meet the oxpectations of the grade level currleutum or access her full educational program
without the need for accommodations, modifications, and/or specially designed instruction.” The
CTHSS staff then indicated that CTHSS dees not make any modifications to grade level woik ox
standards, pacing, or curtioulum, Given her needs, the CTHSS team determined that R couid
10t access the general education curriculusn and that CTHSS covld not accommodaio S8,

4838 has attended HPS (Bums School) since moving to Hartford fiom Puetto Rico in 2011,
Pugsuant to his IEP, 4B is Identified to receive special education supports and services under
the disabitity category of “Other Health Impaired.” He fully participated in mainsiream classes,

12 The CTHSS staff questloned 888's veed for intensive psychlatric services and prossed the school as to why ft
veferrod SEE to such a high level of care. $§8Es mental health providers explalned that the refevral was not
made by the schoo) and the school noted that@never has behavioral fssues within the classroom,




with daily English Language Learner (“ELL”) supports. Though &8§had a difficult seventh
grade 3y'sar behaviorally, he showed considerable growth and maturity during his eighth grade
year.”” (B8 also made significant gains in reading comprehension and ELL skills, See atfached
November 18, 2015 and May 26, 2016 IEPs.

CTHSS convened an Admissions PPT (Vinal Technical High School) on May 16, 2016, The
special education teacher, gnidance counselor, and math teacher from HPS attended by phons, as
did #8®, his guardian, and undetsigned counsel. ‘The CTHSS team expressed concerns with
88 s Reading and math levels, and his preparedness for Algebra I, given his math goals, The
CTHSS tcam asked §EE¥s math teacher whether gEEPhad pre-Algebra skills and whether he was
“Algebra-ready.” The CTIHSS personnel questioned whether the math curriculum used by the
Burns school covered pre-Algebra skills, and even asked for specificity about the last two topics
covered, (EEB's Math teacher noted that JERP. responds to multiple teaching techniques and that
ho has minimal accommodations in class, namely extra examples. B had not fallen behind the
pace of his eighth grade math class, and in fact, was one of the top students in his class. The
CTHSS team then inquired why the HPS sending school could not specify Math placement for
ninth grade and asked that a second PPT be convened, Counsel explained that all ninth grade
students in HPS are placed in Algebra I regardless of performance level or grades.

At the May 16, 2016 Adinissions PPT, counsel asked the CTHSS team about assistive
technology supports for reading to holp SR, access texts in the general education curtleulum,
CTHSS staff who attended the Admissions PPT were not knowledgeable about available
nssistive technology suppotts and they could not diveotly avswer the question, Rather, the
CTHSS representatives sidestepped the question, replying that textbooks used at CTHSS are
identical fo those used in the trade schools. The CTHSS personnel added that CTHSS students
take the same testing for trades as in trade school, some of which may sliow for minimal
accommodations. The CTHSS staff could not offer any specific accommodations or name those
trades that might offer such accommodations,

Counsel also inquired about ELL supporls at CTHSS at {he May 16, 2016 Admissions PPT.
Again, the CTHSS personnel had no information to shate about the level of supports,

On May 31, 2016, CTHSS convened a second Admissions PPT at Vinal Technical High School.
The C'THSS teatn again asked the HPS personnel about the math currfeubim being used in Buins
School, questioning whether it was a pre-Algebra cuniculum, and whether S8 was “Algebra-
ready.” Gounsel explained that HPS students are not iracked in their math programming: i.¢., all
students In eighth grade in the same school take the same math course, Similarly, in ninth grade,
all HPS students are enrolled in Algebra I regardiess of performance in eighth grade math or on
any standardized or norm-referenced assessment,

At the conclusion of the second Adinissions PPT, the CTHSS team “determined that due to
[498]'s need for alternate worksheets, modified work, modified assessment eriteria, and his

13The CTHSS personnel also questioned the sending schiool team why a Behavior Intervention Plan (BIP) or
Safety Plan was nat In developed and about #'s need for psychiatrie evaluation. The sending school team
reflected that S emotfonal growth was significant and thata BIP or Safety Plan was completely

mmecessary.




need for 180 days of instruction to continue to make progress, an appropriate program cannot be
implemented at Vinal Technical High School without a fundamental alteration of CTHSS
programming,” See attached May 31, 2016 IBP.

e

O (s an LIPS (Kennelly School) student. Pursuant to his IEP, B is identified as eligible to
receive special education supporis and services undet the primary disability of Other Health
Impaired/ ADHD.

Based on S's March 10, 2016 HPS IEP (annual review), S8l receives only one and one-half
houts/week “push-in” language mis support, one and one-hatf hours/week push-in math support,
and one hour/week speech and language servicos. g8 requites assistance with organization,
can be inconsistent with homework, and is distracted, but not hyperrctive, He requires a
multisensory reading program, His notm-teferenced MAP score for Fall 2015 in reading was 199
(approx. beginning fourth-grade level) and math was 202 (beginning fourth-grade level),
Psychological testing from March 2015 demonstrates average cognitive ability, with high Visual
Motor Integration scores (112), The “impact of the student’s disability on involvement and
progress in the general education curricutum® is described as “[his] disability affects his ability
to access the general education curriculum without support.” See attached March 10, 2016 1EP.

CTHSS convened an Admissions PPT with CTHSS at B.C. Goodwin Technical High School on
Junc 2, 2016, #8®s olassroom teachier from HPS’s Kennelly School, Shati Gill, attended the
PPT with #8588 and his family. The CTHSS staff focused on i ’s below grade level
performance in math and reading and deterinined that @ was not “Algebra-ready,” ostensibly
basing its determination on Ms, Gill’s statement that “student’s ninth grade plan is Pre-Algebra.”
The CTHSS Admissions PPT then concluded that “students’® needs preclude participation in
CTHSS programming.” See attached June 2, 2016 TBP,

2538 attended the HIPS (Bumns School) for eighth grade. She attended school in Bloomfield for
seventh grade, Bloomfield identified SEEB as cligible for special cducation as a student with
“Multiple Disabilities” due to her diaguosis of ADHD and a Specific Learning Disability in
math, During her seventh grade year, §iprogressed “three prade levels on the AIMSweb
math computation test,” See attached Carmen Arace Middle School, June 22, 2015 Progress

Report,

At her Ootober 6, 2015, HPS changed her primary disability to “Specific Learning Disabilities”
in math.4EEERPs Present Levels of Perfornance indicate that Sl is on grade level for reading,
but in math “has difficulty retaining concepts taught, and applying strategies to independent
work.” See atfached October 6, 2015 TEP,

10



The Present Levels of Performance from her March 1, 2016 amwal review IEP indicate that
“{EEE)’s inability to understand and solve grade level mathematical concepts as prosented in the
general education classroom impacts her progress in the general education curriculum.” SEER's
IEP required two hours/week push-in math support, two hours/week resource math suppont, and
thirty minutes/week individual social work supports, Norm-referenced MAP testing showed
growth in math from 187 in Fall 2015 to a score of 205 in Spring 2016 (carly~-mid fourth-grade
level) and a de minimis drop in reading from 217 to 216 (mid seventh-grade level). CHEESs LAS
(BLL test scores) placed her at “level 4-5” in all atens. See attached March 1, 2016 IEP,

RS Admissions PPT with CTHSS took place on May 31, 2016 at Vinal Technical High
School. §REEEPs special education teacher from her HPS sending school, Ms, Mayo, attended the
meeting as well. The CTHSS team paid patticolar altention to SEE's math scores and elicited
from Ms, Mayo that “[#588] is working on multiplication and that her math work needs to be
modified in order for her to access the content.” As a result, the CTHSS “determined that due to
[#F"s] need to have math content modified, her needs preclude participation in CTHSS
programming.” See attached May 31, 2016 IEP,

=y

SR is a student in the Buistol Public Schools. He is identified for special education under the
category of “Emotional Disturbance.” For the 2015-2016 school year, Sifattended the GOAL
program at Greene-Hills School, The GOAL program is a self-contained program in which
students enrn mainstreaming opportunitics. MEvas mainstreamed for all but five hours per
week for the entire 2015-2016 school year. He performed well academically, but his behavior
occasionally interfered with his learning, Bristol Public Schoof’s IEP for the 2016-2017 schoo!
year placed SRIBin a self-contained prograin to assist him with transitioning fo high school, but
the PPT intended to meet again catly in the school year (within approximately two weeks of
school starting) to review his fransition and scale back his self-contained hours aud give him
more mainstream time in regular educalion classes as appropriate, per Dr. Michael Dietler,
Supervisor of Special Services, Bristol Public Schools,

For the 2016-2017 school year, SSlPapplied to the CTHSS (B.C. Goodwin Technical High
School), He was initially accepted, with the understanding that the CTHSS would convene a PPT

meeting fo review whether the school was an appropriate placement for:

Al the Admissions PPT meeting with the CTHSS on May 17, 2016 at B,C, Goodwln, the CTHSS
staff indicated from the beginning of the meeting that the CTHSS would not be able to provide
the services infl#®®’s IEP. His GOAL teachey, Jessica Hartls, stated during the PPT that (8
was probably the most successful student in the prograin, that he was a pleasure to work with,
and he was respectful and responsive, s, Hatris furthey stated that @SBused the GOAL
program for behavioral support approximately once or twice per month,

Bristol convened an emergency PPT meeting on May 25, 2016, The Bristol team agreed that

because AP was doing so well, it was appropriate to reduce his time in a self-contalned setting,
and agreed thal he would have two of his core classes in the mainstream fiom the beginning of
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{he year. His services houts were recuced to 5.6 hours every other day, While S5 would still be
in the self-contained Learning Center for math and language arts, the Bristol PPT recommended
meeting eatly in the 2016-2017 school yeat to discuss additional time in the mainstream seftting.
See attached May 25, 2016 IEP.

=R pavent and her counsel requested that the CTHSS reconvene a PPT to consider his revised
IEP, but the CTHSS refused to do so. See altached Email from Christine Chinni, Esq,, to Amy
Corbett-Dion, Hsq,, GHLA, June 20, 2016.

———

GEERPis » HPS student (McDonough School). She is identified as eligible to recelve special
education supports under the primery disability category of “Specific Learning Disability”
(math). G is at or near grade level in reading, with a MAP score in Spring 2016 of 218, (mid
seventh-grade level). Her math MAP score in Spring 2016 was 214 (mid fifth-geade level). She
has some executive functioning deficits, and some diffioulty with homework and classwork
completion.

The CTHSS convened an Admissions PPT on June 24, 2016 at B.C. Goodwin Teclnical School.
WA altcnded the PPT with her mother and counsel, Given that summer vacation had started for
HPS students, a representative from her sending HPS school did not attend the meeting, though it
is unclear whether the CTHSS invited any sending school staff to the Admissions PPT, The
CTHSS team questioned QR about her eighth grade math class, whether she was “Algebra-
ready,” and what the HPS sending school was recommending for ninth grade math placement.
Counsel again explained (see infira for C.R.) that HPS does not track eighth or ninth grade math
classes based on ability or past performance, i.e. all ninth grado Hartford students ave enrolled in
Algebra I, The CTHSS ropresentatives then attributed Hariford’s practice of “modifying grades
according to the IBP” to its lack of iracking classes based on performance level, The CTHSS
tonm continued by stressing repeatedly that curriculum, pacing, amount of work, and grades
could not be modified at the CTHSS,

The CTHSS Admissions PPT offered Sl 1 45-day diagnostic placement at CTHSS (E.C.
CGloodwin Technical High Schoel) per Regs., ConnsAgen, § 10-76d-14(b), In light ol SmmR’s
express desive to putsue 4 carcer in auto mechanics, YR accepted the diagnostie placement,
‘The questions or critetia by which to evaluate GESE®'s diagnostic placement were not defermined
at the Admissions PPT.

Subsequent to the PPT, $E® attempted the summer math homework, Per the CTHSS team’s
stance at the Admissions PPT, the CTISS did not modify the math homework in any way for
SRERP Finding the summer math work difficult, and feacing the minimal fevel of suppotts and the
CTHSS’ refusal to offer any modifications in math, SR withdrew her application from the
CTHSS in early July 2016, SEE@intends to enroll in a HPS distriot school that affords
reasonable modifications and accommodations for lier needs.
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GBI is a fourteen-year-old BPS student who vecenily completed eighth grade at High Horizons
Magnet School (“High Horizons”). §8l™s classified as a student with “Autism” on his IEP, and
has been mainsireamed for all academic subjects and specials, BPS originally made
recommendations for S at his March 15, 2016 PPT, which included placement in a “highly
structured” environment, though S8 Rvas to be “mainstreamed) into academic classrooms for
all specials and academic subjects.” See attached March 15, 2016 IEP, p. 2. He also was to
receive four hours/month of speech and language services, and one houweek of social work
services. ITis “Special Education Annual Report,” which was reviewed at the March 15,2016
PPT, notes that he was “on grade level” for math, seience, and social studies, and that the school
staff used grade seven materials for his work in reading and writing, for which he received
spectal education support. See attached Special Education Annual Report, March 15, 2016, p.1.
5 received all A's and B's and had no discipline issues at High Horlzons.

His teachers added that he “has continued to make great strides” in school, “participates
actively,” and “has a great sense of humor”, They also commented that@EE® “has made alot of
progress this year,” as he has “become more open and articulates his thoughts very clearly.,” Of
particular note is SEEB’s “ A+ grade in math, due to his ability to “grasp math concepts easily
and eagetly,” such that he no longer needed math goals on his IBP, See atfached Special
Education Annual Report March 15, 2016. B.A.'s social worker added that he “has shown
maturity in his ability to understand and handle stressful situations,” and that “he is able to
communicate his needs in an appropriate matfer™ while becoming “more outgoing and confident
in soclal seltings.” See attached Social Wotk Summary March 15, 2016,

Immediatoly after the PPT at High Hotizons on March 15, 2016, Joan Collins, SE8’s special
education teacher, accompanicd @8’s mother to an Admissions PPT at Bullard Havens
Technical School, JP's mother and Ms, Collins noted that the CTHSS staff continued fo
review older documents when discussing @88.’s needs, and would not consider his newest
reporis and the significant progress he had made over the 2015-2016 school yeat, Ms, Collins
pointedly fold the CTHSS team members that the work ho produced was ot individually
modified for him in any way. Both Ms, Collins and @RE¥s mother folt that the group “had made
up their mind before it even started,” The CTHSS team ultimately denied (88 due to his
placement in a “highly structured predictable envivonment with a low student to teacher tatio.”
The recommendation continued, “As a result [of this placement], the CTHSS cannot provide an
appropriate program for the student’s needs.” See attached March 15, 2016 IRP,

At a June 13, 2016 PPT, BPS changed S888’s placement recommendation temoving the
recommendation for a “highly structured, . .environment,” and maintaining the mainstreaming
recommendations, with the incluslon of one period/day of resoutce room support, See attached

June 13, 2016 IBP,

Undersigned counsel made the CTHSS counsel aware of the change in recommendations that
occurred at the June 13, 2016 PPT. The CTHSS counsel informed the undersigned that “we do
not believe that the revised IEP can be implemented at Bullard Havens without a fundamental
alteration of the program. While Bridgeport now ‘feels’ that the Student can be successful at
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Bullard, there is no evidence cited in support of this claim. Accordingly, there is no need to
convene ai additional mesting in this matter.” See attached Email from Christine Chinni, Bsq.,
to Kathryn Meyer, Bsq,, Center for Children's Advocacy, June 15, 2016.

.4

#BER is a thirieen-year-old BPS student who recently completed bis 8th grade ycar at the
Waltersville School, He is classified on his IEP gs a student who is “Other Health Impaired” due
to his diagnosis of Attention Defieit Hyperactivity Disorder (“ADHD"), His most recent IEP
with progeam details describes a recommendation of one peried/day of language arts special
education support, to take place as a push-in service in his regular education classroom.
Additionally, he received only thirty minutes of social work service “on a consultative basis” per
month, See attached March 23, 2016 IBP. N.R.’s progress report from February 11, 2016, which
aligned with his IEP goals, had all “Satisfactory” matks. See attached Progress Report for IEP
Goals and Objectives, February 11, 2016, N.R.’s IEP only includes goals for Language Arts; he
fias no goals pertaining to any other academic subject or social/behavioral issues,

Additionatly, SERPhas made marked progress in his ability to cope with his ADHD, us evidenced
by reports in the record. His March 23, 2016 IEP notes, “He has shown significant
improvements in his ability to confrol his impulses, which has led to improved social skills.”
Also mentioned is that SEEB is “polite and easily engaged... [and] has demonstrated
improvements in school behavior,” The IEP progtess hotes and teacher reporis shared at the
March 23, 2016 PPT, which was attended by CTHSS representative Martin DeFilippo, indicate
that BB, made major improverents during his eighth grade year. BPS staff even mentioned
reducing his special education instructional howrs and other supports because they were no
longer negded.

On April 4, 201 6,G8's mother received a call from Bullard Havens, saying that the school was
conducting an Admissions PPT “now” and that the school intended to conduct the PPT “with or
without {her).” BB s mother was very confused, as she had been told that the March PPT
would suffice as an Admissions PPT. Despite this, SElPs mother agreed to participate in the
April 4, 2016 PPT by phone. During that PPT, the CTHSS stait characterized SRER as
“nggressive,” which was shocking to §EE™s mother, and wholly unsupporied by his school
vecord, The CTHSS team at Bullard Havens concluded: “Student’s need precludes patticipation
in CTHSS program” due to the recommendation of “full-time programming with modifications,
alternative tests, modified grades, wotksheets, and tests for the 2016-2017 school year due to
academic and behavioral difficultics (impulse control).”

-~

L

mbimrem—r—r—

@B o Glastonbury Public Schools stadent, identified with “Specific Learning Disabilities.”
He is diagnosed with Dyslexia, W.D), took an Algebra I class for the first half of eighth grade, He
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transferred into an alternative math class, an Algebra class at a slower pace, in January 2016,
€ receives daily academic supports and some paraprofessional support in Science,

The CTHSS convened an Admissions PPT at Cheney Teolnical High School on March 31, 2016.

@SBRI s mothor felt that the admissions decision was predetermined before the PPT began. Atthe
conclusion of the PPT, the CTHSS toam determined thatGEER’s nceds precluded attendance
because the CTHSS could not modify tests or grading and could not accommodate JHED s needs
for daily academic support. See attached March 31, 2016 1EP,

XLhe Revised Admisslons Policy in Practice;

The VRA implics that CTHSS will participate in a PPT convened by the student’s sending
school district team to offer guidance and information prior to the end of the student’s eighth-
grade school year. VRA §§ C.2-3 (“CTHSS will continue iis practico of patticlpating in IEP or
Scotion 504 mestings for nitintly accepted applicants.., CTHSS agrees that the main purpose of
its participation in these meetings is to allow CTHSS to share its knowledge and expertise about
CTHSS programming so that the team, as 8 whole, can assess what special education, and/or
related aids and services must be provided to ensure the student will recoive a fice appropriate
publio education (RAPE) inn the CTHSS school the following year.”},

In practice, following the receipt of the Parent Return Statement and special education records,
CTHSS invites parents/guardians to a PPT at the CTHSS. Upon information and belief, CTHSS
inconsistently invites sending schools to Admissions PPTs, Adinissions PP'Ts are also not
regulatly scheduled at times when sending school staff is available. For examplo, undersigned
counsel atfended a PPT fn June 2015 for an applicant for the 2015-2016 ninth grade class,
CTHSS had not invited the sending school, Counsel had the contact information for the sending
school and ensured the participation by plone of staff with prosent knowledge of the student,
Additionally, the Admissions PPT for Sl was scheduled during summer vacation, As a result,
$EBY s sonding school did not participate in her Admissions PPT.

As a result, the Admisstons PPT somelimes proceeds without the patticipation of any regular
education or special education staff members who have worked with, and have knowledge of, the
applicant. In other instances, the Admissions PPT proceeds with CTHSS staff reprosentatives
who are unable to speak with knowledge of BLL supports, Assistive Technology supports, or
specific trade requirements. As a result, the Admission PPT cannot answer sending school or
patent questions about how CTHSS can meet a specific studont’s needs, Tn either circumstance,
the Admissions PPT convenes without mandatory participants in violation of IDEA, 3 CF.R. §
300.321, and is structurally deficient, See, e.g., R.B. v. NAPA Valley Unif, Sch, Dist., 496 F.3d
932 (9th Cix. 2007), 48 IDELR 60, Thus, admissions decisions are made by individuals who
have little to no familiatity with the applicant, or ate made by staff who have limited knowledge

of available supports.
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The starting point of all discussions at the Admissions PPT is the Programming Considerations
Chart, providing a side-by-side comparison of traditional high schools and the CTHSS. See
attached Programming Congiderations Chatt,

In the course of reviewing the Programming Considerations Chart at the Adinissions PPTs, the
CTHSS representatives routinely stress that the CTHSS will NOT:

- modify curiculum or curricular materials,

- modify pace of insituction,

- modify programming or schedules, on a daily, semester, or yently basis,
- modify instiuctional levels or sites for insiruction,

- modify testing or grading,

« offer Bxtended School Year (ESY) services.

A blanket refusal to consider these modifications violates the IDEA, Section 504, and the ADA.
Morcover, the provision of such modifications should not automatieatly “preclude such student’s
participation in the vocational education program,” which is the legal standard set by Conn, Gen.
Stat, §810-76q"* for the rejection of & special education student by the CTHSS and his/her
teferral back to his sending district for educational programming,

14 oy example, all students are taught in mainstveam classes by defauit. Pull-out instruction or resource
room thme is not offered as a part of a continuum of placements, See attached CTHSS Supplemental Programs,
(“[CTHSS)' philosophy {s to faclude all students within the general education setting. ‘The PPT process
determings the requived services for identifled students, The Special Education Depariment works to provide
needed accommodations and sevvices within the general education settings and technology areas through the
use of collaborative and co-teaching models In line with educating students In the least restrictive
environment) At the Admissions PPT, {f students require pull-ont instruction or support in a resource raony,
the CTHSS generally determines that the student's needs “preclude such student's participation” in CTHSS,

Conn, Gen, Stat, §10-76q{c).

150a) The State Boavd of Rducation, n accotdance with regulations adopted by sald boavd, shalk (1) Provide
the professlonal services necessary to identify, in accordance with sactlon 10-762, chitldren requiving special
education who are envolled at state technical high schools, in accordance with sectlon 10-95; (2) idontily each
such child; (3) determine the appropriateness of the state technical high schiool for the educatlonal needs of
each such child; (4) provide an appropiiate educational program for each such chitd; (6) maintain a vecord
thercof, and {6) anhually evaluate the progress and accomplishments of special education programs at the
state technical high scheols,

() Where it is deemed appropriate that a child enrolled In a state technteal high school recelve speclal
education, the parents or guardian of such child shall have a right to the hearing and appeal process as
provided for in section 10-76h.

{c) If a planning and placement team determines thata student requlves speclal education services which
preciude such student's particlpation in the vacational education program offered by a technical high school,
the student shall be referred to tho board of education in the town in which the student resides for the
development of an individualized educational program and such board of education shall be responsible for
the Implementation and Nlnancing of such program.” Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-764,
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In addition, at the Admissions PPT, the CTHSS representatives emphasize that the CTHSS
academic/technical cyeles provide only very limited opportunities for support, intervention, and
re-teaching.

At the Admissions PPT, the CTHSS representatives underscore that students must enter CTHSS
“Algebra-ready” for math instruction although there is no such requirement stated on the general
application used by all students including those without disabilities. At the Admissions PPT, the
CTHSS representatives also question sending school staff about the scope and content of their
eighth grade math curriculum though there ate no similar questions posed to ail regular education
teachers on the general application, Questions about performance level and the scope of content
of curticulum only for students with disabilities thus constitute impermissible additional
admissions critexia for students with disabilitics,

'[he CTHSS representatives further stress at the Admissions PPT that pacing and cuniculum
modifications to Algebra math instruction will not be made for any student, even those with
IBPs. See, e.g., J.I.V. 5/10/16 IEP (“[PPT] agreed if is not appropriate to placo [REEEEE in
Algebra I curriculum where standards can not be modified... The team determined that an
appropriate program can't be planned for (EEF) at Cheney Technical Iigh School at this
time.”) (Emphasis added.) For example, al the Admissions PPTs, the CTHSS representatives
wnderscore that the sole manner to demonsirate mastery of ninth grade Algebra at CTHSS is
through successfut completion of ALEKS, the on-line Algebra program utilized by the CTHSS,
which must be completed by approximately November of their tenth grade year. o

At the Admission PP'T, the CTHSS teptesentatives work from an underlying assumption that
accepled students are required to graduate in four years, in emphasizing deadlines to complete
Algebra I, pacing of instraction, and the lack of modifications to pacing,'” Such a requivement is
contrary to federal and state law, See 34 C.F.R, § 300.101(a), Conn, Gen, Stat, §§10-76d, 10-
220, See also 34 CF.R. §104.44 (for pgﬂsecgndar?g vocational students, extended Hime to earn a
degrec is an example of reasonable modifications),

In addition, the CTHSS representatives also express concern for an applicant’s ability to tolerate
the number of transitions in the CTHSS schedule, inoluding the transition from academic cycle
(2 weeks) to trade cyele (2 weeks), and then within the exploratory trade cyele. With ¢ach
transition, students must adhere to rules and expeotations set by different teachers, each with a

t6 See attached CTHSS Graduation Requirements,

¥ Per policy, » student may attend summer school “where available” or repeat a grade only "space permiiting,
after administrative reviow.” Based on information and bellef, more comimon in practice Is that studeits who
are not making expected progress, "exit and envoll in their local district” See attached CTHSS Graduation
Reguirements,

18 As to postsecondary students, federal regulations provide: “A reciplent to which this subpart applies shail
make such modIfications to fts academic requivements as are necessary to ensuve that such requirements do
not diseriminate or have the effect of discriminating, on the basts of handicap, against a qualifed handicapped
applicant or student, Academic requivements that the recipient can demonstrate are essentdal to the
instruction being pursued by such student ox to any divectly related licensing vequirement will not be
regarded as discriminatory within the meaning of this section, Modifications may include changes In the
tength of time permitted for the completion of degree requirements, substitution of specific courses required
for the completion of degree requlrements, and adaptation of the manner in which specific cowrses are

conducted.” 34 C.R.R, §104,44,
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new set of classroom rules and expectations for a student to learn, The CTHSS representatives
particularly question those students who are coming from a full or partial day self-contained
program. There are no such questions on the general application to elicit information about how
a regulat education middle school student can handle the extent of iransitions at the CTHSS,
which exceed those of a regular education middle school student. The questioning of a student
with disabilities about his or her ability to handle transitions is thus an impermissible additional
admissions criterion that only applics to students with disabilities.

Following the review of the Programming Considerations Chayt, the Admissions PPT delves into
the student’s Individual Education Plan (“IEP”), including the Present Levels of Performance
("PLOP”) in math and reading, goals and objectives, modifications and accommodations, and
hours of services. Given the line of questioning aad tone at the Admissions PPT, it is apparent
that CTHSS representatives have already made their deoision on the application based on their
prior review of the special education records.'” Below grade-level performance (despile Bnglish
or Math grades) in reading or math, daily academic supports, or time in self-contained
classtoomns are all indicators that the student will be denied admission.

Summary ard Conclusion

Based on these oase examples, Complainants allege that the CTHSS applies its admissions
policies in ways that discriminate agatnst students with disabilities in violation of the ADA and
Section 504 and the implementing tegulations, and Conn, Gen, Stat, § 46a-75,

‘The Complainants contend that the CTHSS’ admissions policy improperly excludes and has a
discriminatory impact on students with disabilities in that it:

1. Imposes additional admissions criteria for students with disabilities in violation of
the ADA and Scetion 504, and the implementing regulations; Guidelines IV.A
and K; and VRA C.3.

2- Predetermines adinission based solely on scores on norm-referenced tests for
students with disabilities only, and in advance of any PPT meeting, making the
PPT process both futlle and misleading, in violation of 34 C.F.R. § 300,327 and
§ 300.501(c)(1).

3- Utilizes criteria that have not been demonsirated to be essential to participation in
CTIISS, in violation of the ADA and Section 504, and the implementing
regulations; Guidelines IV.X; and VRA B.3 and B.G.

4« Bascs decisions on the ability of a student with disabilities to access the general
education curriculum without reasonable modifications and accommodations,
when failing to make reasonable modifications and accommodations is in itself
diseriminatory, and in violation of the ADA. and Section 504, and theis
implementing regulations; and Guidelines 1V, N,

19 See, a.g., attached State of Conneciteut Department of Bducation Complaing No, 16-0452, filed pro se by i}
and Letter of Inquivy dated Apuil 22, 2016 (noting that the parent “clalms the ... PPT predeterinined the
outcome ol a [PPT}").
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The CTHSS discriminated against the following students specifically, in violation of the ADA
and Section 504, in that it;

¢ Declined admission o SEENTEERP, ond Py applying an additional admissions
criterly, i.e., being “Algebra»ready," wlnch was a criteria not applied fo regular education

studenis app]ymg to CTHSS,

¢ Refused to make modifications to pacibg, curriculum, matetials, classwoxk homework
or tests in any way, and thus rejected applications for admission to SRR

S o SR

e Refused to take into consideration revised IBP recommendations for iR and ZEFMnd
thus denied admission to these students based on outdated information, and

¢ Denied admission to8® due to previous behavior that was a manifestation of s
disability, ADHD, despite several teacher remarks of the improvement made duting his
eighth grade year.

Relief Requested:

Complainants request that OCR:

1- Invesligate the CTHSS fo determine whether the CTHSS’ Revised Admissions Process is
having a diseriminatory impact on students with disabilitles by denylag or limiting
adiission to the CTHSS system to students by:

A. conducting & comprchonsive review of all cages of students with disabilitics who
were denied admission for the 2016-2017 schoof year,

B. reviewing and providing undersigned counsel with the following: any written
instructions to the CTHSS admissions staff or PPT/504 membets concerning
criteria for admissions of students with disabilities,

C. reviewing any complaints made against the CTHSS concerning discrimination or
problems in the admissions process for students with disabilities, and

D. reviewlng all reports and data already submitted to OCR pursuant lo the May
2015 VRA,

2- Appoint an independent monitor to develop and oversee the creation and implementation
of a new admissions policy and procedure for the CTHESS that will comply with the ADA
and Section 504 of tho Rehabilitation Act and will not have a disctiminatory impaoct on
students with identified disabilities,

3- Secure compllancc from the CTHSS with the ADA and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation
Act by requiring the CTHSS pexsonnel to attend fraining sessions conducted by an
agency/entity with expertise in educating students with disabilities in the technicat high
school system as Identified by OCR,

4- Closely monltor any resulting agrcements with the CTHSS to ensure compliance with the
ADA and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act by conducting quarterly reviews of all
students who are rejected from the CTHSS system through the PPT process.
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5- Take any additional steps to remedy any untawful conduet by the CTHSS as identified by
OCR’S investigation or otherwise deemed i‘lppl Opl 1ate by OCR,

6- Require the CTHSS to offer students SNSRI , ~nd IR admission to the
respective technical schools to which they apphed This admission offer shail follow &
PPT meeting facilitated by cach student’s sending school district, during which tine
appropriate suppoxts and modifications will be recommended to ensure student’s success
in the CTHSS environment,

Respectfully Submitted,
Als. 1/ M-S Wager

Maria Morelli-Wolfe Kathryn Schetnberg Meyer
Attorney for fESRIREIRIRNEES~ Attorney for

Greater Hartford Legal Ald Inc. Center for Children’s Advocacy
999 Asylum Avenue, 3" Floor 2074 Park Street

Hartford, CT 06015 Hattford, CT 06106
860-541-5042 860-570-5327
nmorelliwolfe@ghia.on kmeyer@kidscounsel.org

Amy Corbelt-Dion

Aftorney for il

Greater Hartford Legal Aid, Inc,
999 Asylum Avenue, 3rd Floor
Hartford, CT 06015
860-541-5037

adion@ghla.org

Lynn Cochiane

Attorney for R

Greater Hartford Legal Aid, Inc.
999 Asylum Avenue, 31d Floor
Hartford, CT 06015
860-541-5045

leochrane@ghla,org

Jay Sicklick

Center for Children’s Advocacy
2074 Patk Street

Hattford, CT 06106
860-570-5327
jsicklic@kidscounsel.or
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